
 

 
Addenbrooke House   Ironmasters Way    Telford   TF3 4NT 

 

Continued… 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Date Wednesday, 16 December 2020 Time 6.00 pm 

Venue Remote Meeting 

 

Enquiries Regarding this Agenda 

Democratic Services Kieran Robinson 01952 382061 

Media Enquiries Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee 
Membership: 

Councillors M Boylan, C Cassar, I T W Fletcher, E J Greenaway, 
V J Holt, J Jones, A D McClements (Chair), H Rhodes and 
K T Tomlinson, Co-optees S Fikeis, L Fowler, C Morgan and M Ward 

 

AGENDA 
Page 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

5 - 8 

4.   COVID-19 Update  
 To receive the presentation of Simon Wellman (Director: Education and 

Skills). 
 
Councillor S A W Reynolds (Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People, Education and Lifelong Learning) will also attend for this item. 
 

 

5.   Family Safeguarding Model (Hertfordshire Model) Briefing  
 To receive the presentation of Jo Britton (Executive Director: Children’s 

Safeguarding & Family Support), Adele Harris (Director: Children’s 
Safeguarding & Family Support), and Darren Knibbs (Strategic Lead: 
Practice Development and Innovation).  
 
Councillor S A W Reynolds (Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People, Education and Lifelong Learning) will also attend for this item. 
 

 

6.   Referred Council Motion  
 To consider the following motion referred from the meeting of Full 

Council on 26 November 2020 - 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

‘This Council notes: 

a) The ‘School Streets’ initiative aims to protect children from air 

pollution and road danger on the way to/from school, and a 

shift towards greener, more active forms of transport (which 

in turn reduces carbon emissions). 

 

b) This is achieved by closing streets next to schools to motor traffic 

at “school run” times. Children may get to school by walking, 

cycling, etc. Vehicles may park further away from school, and 

children and parents walk in. Exemptions exist for residents 

accessing properties. 

 

c) School Streets are growing fast: London has gone from 81 to 383 

School Streets since April. 

 

d) In 2019, this council resolved to become carbon neutral by 2030. 

 

e) This council has announced a £2.6m investment into sustainable 

travel measures. 

 

f) Further information regarding School Streets can be found via 

this useful video of a successful scheme introduced in 

Hackney Council area. https://youtu.be/dlyLZ3lT6jU 

  

 

This Council resolves to work collaboratively with councillors, schools, 

and local partners to: 

a) Swiftly identify schools in the Borough that could benefit from a 

‘School Streets’ scheme. 

 

b) Following consultation, implement ‘School Streets’ at these 

schools as soon as possible, taking advantage of experimental 

traffic orders and statutory guidance over fast-tracked TROs. 

 

c) Look to improve cycling and walking infrastructure where 

necessary, so such schemes are safely and practically 

accessible. 

 

Page 2

https://youtu.be/dlyLZ3lT6jU


 

d) Introduce measures to promote walking and cycling in schools 

not suitable for ‘School Streets’.’ 
 

7.   Work Programme Review 
 

9 - 12 

8.   Chair's Update 
 

 

  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Children & Young People Scrutiny 
Committee held on Thursday, 3 September 2020 at 6.00 pm in Remote 

Meeting 
 

 
Present: Councillors M Boylan, I T W Fletcher, E J Greenaway, V J Holt, 
J Jones, A D McClements (Chair) and H Rhodes.  
 
Also Present: Councillor S A W Reynolds 

 
 
In Attendance:  Jo Britton (Executive Director for Children’s Safeguarding 
& Family Support), C Jones (Executive Director for Children’s & Family 
Services), D Knibbs (Interim Director for Childrens Safeguarding and Family 
Support), A Lowe (Associate Director for Policy and Governance), and K 
Robinson (Democratic and Scrutiny Services Officer) 
 
Apologies: L Fowler and C Morgan 
 
2 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2020 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair.   
 
4 Terms of Reference 
 
RESOLVED – that the Terms of Reference be approved. 
 
5 Scrutiny Review of the Ofsted Report and Action Plan 2020 
 
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director for Children’s 
and Family Services. It was noted that this meeting had been delayed due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic; the meeting had been scheduled for April 2020. 
Members heard that the result of the report was thanks to the Council’s 
dedication to young people and their families, with dedicated staff and strong 
yearly investment in services; the Authority had delivered improvement and 
investment thanks to a transformative vision. The Committee also heard that 
the level of improvement reported by Ofsted made it the only Local Authority 
in the West Midlands to receive an Outstanding rating and the only authority 
outside of London to improve from Needs Improvement to Outstanding.  
 
There remained scope for improvement, with the report noting the quality of 
recording in children’s plans and at key management decision points. This 
point had been addressed in the Council’s Action Plan which set out how the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Authority intended to address the issue. Significant work had been undertaken 
since the inspection to improve, which included having formal minutes taken 
at meetings. Changes made under the Action Plan would remain under review 
to monitor the Council’s progress and to ensure that the actions had the 
intended effect. 
 
Members offered their congratulations to all involved in the Ofsted report and 
noted the significant improvement that it recognised.  
 
Members asked a range of questions, as follows -  
How do we maintain the Borough’s Outstanding status? 
 
The Council would have to maintain its relentless view to improvement.  
Officers were exceptionally pleased with the report, they acknowledged that 
they must continue to strive for improvement, which was to be achieved 
through a strong focus on services, listening carefully to the voices of children 
and young people, and working closely with staff. Officers were also working 
hard on new initiatives and new methods of communication.  
 
How big a part did support from partner organisations play in the report? 
There had been issues with accessing support, how had this improved? 
 
The Council had worked hard with partners to develop services and challenge 
each other. Children benefited from a wide range of services provided by 
various partners that worked together to provide the necessary report. A new 
partnership panel received referrals and worked to find the best solutions. 
Many needs could be met in schools with the correct intervention and with 
consultation and guidance between agencies.  
 
What effect had COVID-19 had on progress? Had there been an increase in 
numbers of children in care? 
 
There had been a significant impact on the lives of children and families due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Council had carried out a risk assessment of 
children’s cases in a timely manner, continued contact through social care 
staff and social workers, and reviewed the risk rankings regularly. Before in 
person visits took place, risk assessments had been undertaken but the 
Council had also been working virtually. Engagement with children and young 
people via digital means had been successful with children and young people 
finding it a more accessible approach.  
 
There had been a significant communications campaign from the Council 
targeting children and young people.  
 
The number of children in care had been steady throughout lockdown and had 
not decreased. There had been a slight increase in numbers as the courts 
reopened but this was expected to stabilise. 
 
Members asked Officers for more information about domestic abuse work 
during the pandemic.  

Page 6



 

 

 
The communications campaign had been to make the Council more 
accessible to young people and to allow them to contact the Council. 
Assessments were still taking place, the Authority had been engaging with 
expectant mothers as it usually would, and supporting those where there may 
have been concerns. Face-to-face visits had continued with risk assessments 
undertaken and PPE in use. The Council was expecting to hear more from 
young people as they returned to schools. There were challenges ahead but 
the Council had worked hard to maintain its services throughout the COVID-
19 pandemic. 
 
It was agreed that a meeting to monitor the Action Plan would be held in the 
early part of 2021.  
 
6 Chair's Update 
 
The Chair raised the work programme and invited the Associate Director: 
Policy and Governance to discuss the issue. The Associate Director 
recommended changes to a number of items, to which the Committee agreed; 
the redrafted work programme incorporating the changes would be brought to 
the next meeting of the Committee.  
 
The meeting ended at 7.05 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday, 16 December 2020 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee – 2020/21 Work Programme 

 

 

Issue / Topic Purpose  Status / 

Source if New 

Service Area SMT Feedback  

(if any) 

SMB Feedback  

(if any) 

Family Safeguarding 

(Hertfordshire Model) 

 

 New - SMT Children’s 

Safeguarding 

Information Briefing 

in December 2020 

 

Initial briefing in 

June/July 2021 

 

Twelve-month 

follow-up  

Children 

Safeguarding 

Improving Practice 

–  

An approach to 

enabling all 

children to live 

safely at home  

Children with Learning 

Disabilities 
 How to improve services for young 

people with special educational 
needs and disabilities (SEND) and 
their families 

 How do we improve our work with 
families to develop care packages 

 Meeting demand for EHCPs and how 
the appeal process is managed 

Special School Places and provision in 

mainstream schools  

New – 

Scrutiny 

Chairs 

Education & 

Corporate Parenting 

Update in March 

2021 to cover 

current offer and 

workstreams 

ongoing 

Children with 

Learning 

Disabilities 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



 

2 
 

Issue / Topic Purpose  Status / 

Source if New 

Service Area SMT Feedback  

(if any) 

SMB Feedback  

(if any) 

Mental health 

provision for Children 

& Young People 

 

(Joint with Health & 

Adult Care) 

Review of early intervention activity New – 

Scrutiny 

Chairs 

NHS  Mental health 

provision for 

Children & Young 

People 

 

(Joint with Health 

& Adult Care) 

Care Leavers Covenant Development of policy to support 

opportunities and support for care 

leavers including work with local 

businesses  

New – 

Scrutiny 

Chairs 

Children’s 

Safeguarding & 

Family Support 

To be reviewed 

following School 

Streets and Mental 

Health work include 

social value element 

of contracts from 

Sarah Bass’ team 

Care Leavers 

Covenant 

P
age 10



 

3 
 

Issue / Topic Purpose  Status / 

Source if New 

Service Area SMT Feedback  

(if any) 

SMB Feedback  

(if any) 

Belonging Strategy  

 

From 

Committee 

* New – 

Scrutiny 

Chairs 

Education & 

Corporate Parenting  

What it is, how it 

benefits children and 

young people.  To 

include how it can 

work to minimise 

school exclusions. 

 

To be carried over. 

School Exclusions 

Educational Attainment Considered annually.  Includes CiC 

results.  

Monitoring Education & 

Corporate Parenting 

To be carried over. Educational 

Attainment 

P
age 11



 

4 
 

Issue / Topic Purpose  Status / 

Source if New 

Service Area SMT Feedback  

(if any) 

SMB Feedback  

(if any) 

LSCB Annual Report In previous years the Annual Report has 

been presented to Scrutiny after HWB. 

Monitoring Children’s 

Safeguarding / 

Organisational 

Development & 

Delivery 

Expected February 

2021 

LSCB Annual 

Report 

 

 

P
age 12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Work Programme Review

